



SPONSOR: Sen. Lopez & Sen. Hansen & Rep. Vanderwende
Sens. Lawson, Pettyjohn, Wilson; Reps. Gray, D. Short

DELAWARE STATE SENATE
151st GENERAL ASSEMBLY

SENATE BILL NO. 262

AN ACT TO AMEND TITLE 20 AND TITLE 29 OF THE DELAWARE CODE RELATING TO THE REVISED
UNIFORM LAW ON NOTARIAL ACTS.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE:

1 Section 1. Amend § 4301, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
2 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

3 § 4301. ~~Appointment of notaries in general; qualifications; revocation.~~Commission as a notary public;
4 qualifications; oath; denial of, refusal to renew, revocation of, suspension of, or condition on commission; no immunity or
5 benefit.

6 (a) ~~In addition to the notaries public authorized to be appointed under §§ 4302-4306 of this title, the Governor~~
7 ~~may appoint as many notaries public as the Governor may decide is necessary and proper in each county of the State. The~~
8 ~~Governor may delegate such duties relative to the appointment of notaries to the Secretary of State as the Governor may~~
9 ~~decide is necessary and proper. For purposes of this title, "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of State. Any person who~~
10 ~~acts as a notary under Delaware law shall register and be commissioned and otherwise be in compliance with the provisions~~
11 ~~of this title. In addition to an individual authorized to be appointed under § 4303 through 4306 of this title, an individual~~
12 qualified under subsection (b) of this section may apply to the Governor for a commission as a notary public. The
13 individual applying for the commission shall comply with and provide the information required by regulations adopted by
14 the Governor and pay the fee required under § 4307(a) of this title. The Governor may delegate the Governor's duties under
15 this chapter to the Secretary of State.

16 (b) ~~Any person who desires to become a notary shall be at least 18 years of age and shall provide such evidence as~~
17 ~~the Secretary may require to show: An individual applying for a commission as a notary public must meet all of the~~
18 following:

19 (1) ~~Good character and reputation; Be at least 18 years of age.~~

20 (2) ~~A reasonable need for a notary commission; and~~ Be a citizen or permanent legal resident of the United
21 States.

22 (3) Legal residence including street address of the notary within the State. Be a resident of or have a place of
23 employment or practice in this State.

24 (4) Be able to read and write English.

25 (5) Not be disqualified to receive a commission under § 4334 of this title.

26 (6) Comply with other requirements established by the Secretary of State by regulation as necessary to ensure
27 the competence, integrity, and qualifications of a notary public and the proper performance of notarial acts.

28 (c)~~The Governor may also appoint, as notaries public for notarial acts other than electronic notarial acts,~~
29 ~~nonresidents of this State who otherwise meet the requirements of paragraphs (b)(1) and (b)(2) of this section, provided that~~
30 ~~such individuals maintain an office or regular place of employment in Delaware. Nonresidents seeking appointments as~~
31 ~~notaries public shall include in their application a residential address and a Delaware employment address. Those appointed~~
32 ~~as notaries shall also notify the Secretary of each change of address within 30 days of such change. All addresses required~~
33 ~~by this subsection shall include a street address.~~

34 (1) A nonresident individual who seeks a commission as a notary public shall include in the individual's
35 application a residential address and the address of the individual's place of employment or practice in this State.

36 (2) Service of process, subpoenas-subpoenas, and other documents upon nonresident notaries on a nonresident
37 individual who is a notary public may be made personally or by leaving them with any person of suitable age and
38 discretion at the Delaware place of employment individual's place of employment or practice in this State. Substituted
39 service shall be effectual if served ~~upon~~on the Secretary of State, under the guideline of § 376(b) of Title 8 ~~in the~~
40 ~~event that the office~~if the place of employment or practice has been closed or such the individual ceases to be regularly
41 employed or regularly practice at the filed ~~Delaware place of employment or practice~~ address. The Secretary of State
42 shall ~~then~~ forward ~~such~~ documents received under this paragraph (c)(2) to the individual at the filed residential address.

43 (3) An individual appointed under this section shall notify the Secretary of State of a change of address within
44 30 days of the change. An address required under this subsection must include a street address.

45 (d)~~(1)The Governor, or as permitted, the Secretary may revoke any notary commission for cause. Before issuance~~
46 ~~of a commission as a notary public, an individual applying for a commission shall execute an oath of office and submit it to~~
47 ~~the Secretary of State as required under § 4308 of this title.~~

48 (2) On compliance with this section, the Governor shall issue a commission as a notary public to an individual
49 for the term under § 4307(a) of this title.

50 (3) A commission to act as a notary public authorizes the notary public to perform notarial acts. The
51 commission does not provide the notary public any immunity or benefit conferred by law of this State on public
52 officials or employees.

53 (4) The Governor may deny, refuse to renew, revoke, suspend, or impose a condition on a commission as
54 notary public for cause, including under § 4334 of this title.

55 (e) The Secretary of State may promulgate regulations or establish such ~~such~~ additional standards and guidelines
56 governing applications, registrations, appointments, and the conduct of ~~resident and nonresident notaries;~~ notaries public.

57 Section 2. Amend § 4302, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
58 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

59 § 4302. Appointment of electronic notaries; term.

60 ~~(a) The Governor may appoint as many electronic notaries as the Governor may decide is necessary and proper.~~
61 ~~The Governor may delegate such duties relative to the appointment of electronic notaries to the Secretary of State as the~~
62 ~~Governor may decide is necessary and proper. Any person who acts as an electronic notary under Delaware law shall~~
63 ~~register and be commissioned and otherwise be in compliance with the provisions of this title.~~

64 ~~(b) Any person who desires to become an electronic notary shall be at least 18 years of age and shall provide such~~
65 ~~evidence as the Secretary may require to show:~~

66 ~~(1) Good character and reputation;~~

67 ~~(2) A reasonable need for an electronic notary commission; and~~

68 ~~(3) Legal residence including street address of the electronic notary within the State.~~

69 ~~(c) The Governor may also appoint, as notaries public for electronic notarial acts, nonresidents of this State who~~
70 ~~otherwise meet the requirements of paragraphs (b)(1) and (b)(2) of this section provided that such individual shall have~~
71 ~~demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Secretary that:~~

72 ~~(1) Such individual maintains an office or regular place of employment in Delaware; or~~

73 ~~(2) Such individual is an attorney at law in good standing licensed in any state, commonwealth, territory,~~
74 ~~district or possession of the United States or such individual is a legal assistant or paralegal working under the direct~~
75 ~~supervision of an attorney at law in good standing licensed in any state, commonwealth, territory, district or possession~~
76 ~~of the United States and such attorney at law is a Delaware electronic notary and has previously submitted to the~~
77 ~~Secretary and had approved by the Secretary an application containing such information as the Secretary shall deem~~
78 ~~necessary and proper and demonstrating such attorney at law has a reasonable need for permitting 1 or more legal~~

79 assistants or paralegals under that attorney-at-law's direct supervision to become an electronic notary under Delaware
80 law; or

81 ~~(3) Such individual is a current employee of a banking, trust, or insurance company organized and regulated~~
82 ~~under the laws of the United States or any state, commonwealth, territory, district or possession of the United States,~~
83 ~~and such banking, trust, or insurance company shall have previously submitted to the Secretary and had approved by~~
84 ~~the Secretary an application containing such information as the Secretary shall deem necessary and proper and~~
85 ~~demonstrating that such banking, trust, or insurance company is in good standing and has a reasonable need for~~
86 ~~permitting 1 or more of its employees to become an electronic notary under Delaware law; or~~

87 ~~(4) Such individual is a current employee of a federal governmental agency or unit of the United States and~~
88 ~~such agency or unit shall have previously submitted to the Secretary and had approved by the Secretary an application~~
89 ~~containing such information as the Secretary shall deem necessary and proper and demonstrating that such agency or~~
90 ~~unit has a reasonable need for permitting 1 or more of its employees to become an electronic notary under Delaware~~
91 ~~law. Any such electronic notary, so appointed, shall only perform electronic notarial acts in the performance of their~~
92 ~~official duties.~~

93 ~~Nonresidents seeking appointment as a Delaware electronic notary public shall include in their application~~
94 ~~their primary residential address within any state, commonwealth, territory, district or possession of the United States~~
95 ~~and their employment address in Delaware or within any state, commonwealth, territory, district or possession of the~~
96 ~~United States. Those appointed as electronic notaries public shall also notify the Secretary of each change of address~~
97 ~~within 30 days of such change. Each nonresident electronic notary not having an employment address in Delaware~~
98 ~~shall also designate a registered agent in the State of Delaware to receive service of process, subpoenas and other~~
99 ~~documents. All addresses required by this subsection shall include a street address.~~

100 ~~Service of process, subpoenas and other documents upon nonresident electronic notaries may be made~~
101 ~~personally or by leaving them with any person of suitable age and discretion at the Delaware place of employment or~~
102 ~~the electronic notary's registered agent, if applicable. Substituted service shall be effectual if served upon the Secretary~~
103 ~~of State, under the guideline of § 376(b) of Title 8 in the event that the office has been closed or such individual ceases~~
104 ~~to be regularly employed at the filed Delaware employment address or such registered agent has resigned. The~~
105 ~~Secretary of State shall then forward such documents to the electronic notary's filed residential address or employment~~
106 ~~address outside of the State.~~

107 ~~(d) An applicant to become an electronic notary shall submit a registration form established by the Secretary for~~
108 ~~registering and being commissioned as an electronic notary, which shall include:~~

- 109 (1) The applicant's full legal name;
- 110 (2) ~~A description of the technology or technologies the registrant will use for electronic identification,~~
111 ~~electronic signatures and such other aspects involved in performing each electronic notarial transaction;~~
- 112 (3) ~~If the device used to create the registrant's electronic signature is issued or registered through a licensed~~
113 ~~authority, the name of that authority, the source of the license, the starting and expiration dates of the device's term of~~
114 ~~registration, and any revocations, annulments, or other premature terminations of any registered device of the registrant~~
115 ~~that were due to misuse or compromise of the device, with the date, cause, and nature of each termination explained in~~
116 ~~detail;~~
- 117 (4) ~~The electronic mail address of the registrant;~~
- 118 (5) ~~The electronic signature of the notary which shall be unique to the notary;~~
- 119 (6) ~~Evidence that the electronic notary has taken a course of instruction, whether in the classroom, distance~~
120 ~~learning or online, in accordance with standards established by the Secretary prior to being commissioned as an~~
121 ~~electronic notary, and continuing education, whether in the classroom, distance learning or online, in accordance with~~
122 ~~standards established by the Secretary, during the 2-year term as provided in § 4307 of this title; and~~
- 123 (7) ~~Such other information as the Secretary shall reasonably request.~~

124 ~~The registration form shall (i) be signed by the applicant using the electronic signature described in the form; (ii) include~~
125 ~~any decrypting instructions, codes, keys, or software that allow the registration to be read; and (iii) be transmitted~~
126 ~~electronically to the Secretary.~~

127 ~~Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent an electronic notary from using updated technology or technologies during the~~
128 ~~term of the commission; however, the electronic notary shall notify the Secretary electronically within 90 days of~~
129 ~~installation or use of such updated technology or technologies and provide a brief description thereof.~~

130 ~~(e) The Governor, or as permitted, the Secretary may revoke any electronic notary commission for cause.~~

131 ~~(f) The Secretary may promulgate regulations or establish such additional standards and guidelines governing~~
132 ~~applications, registrations, appointments, and the conduct of resident and nonresident electronic notaries. [Repealed.]~~

133 Section 3. Amend § 4306, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
134 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

135 § 4306. Appointment of notaries for certain service organizations; limited governmental notaries; limitations.

136 (c) Upon ~~On~~ the request of the administrative head of ~~any state, county, municipal, or local governmental agency~~
137 ~~or unit of this State whose personnel include full-time police officers who are statutorily responsible for the prevention or~~
138 ~~investigation of crime involving injury to persons or property and who are authorized to execute search warrants and to~~

139 ~~make arrests (hereinafter called a “qualified police agency”), a qualified police agency,~~ the Governor shall appoint a
140 sufficient number of ~~electronic-limited governmental~~ notaries public as may be requested by the administrative head to
141 facilitate the law-enforcement responsibilities of the ~~agency or unit.~~ qualified police agency. The appointment ~~shall is to be~~
142 for a term of 2 years, without charge to the appointee, administrative head, or police agency, ~~except for costs not waived by~~
143 ~~the Secretary which are established under § 4307(b) of this title for special identification cards, hardware, or other related~~
144 ~~materials and technologies or training.~~ Any such notary, so appointed, shall have no authority to perform any duties with
145 respect to such office or to take affidavits or acknowledgements, except on documents and papers in connection with, and
146 for the benefit of, their respective police agency. The notaries public so appointed shall make no charge for any service
147 rendered and the Secretary may waive the fees established pursuant to the schedule authorized under § 4307(c) of this title
148 for electronic notarial acts or services performed by such electronic notaries public. agency. For purposes of this section, a
149 “qualified police agency” means a state, county, municipal, or local governmental agency or unit of this State whose
150 personnel includes full-time police officers who are statutorily responsible for the prevention or investigation of crime
151 involving injury to persons or property and who are authorized to execute search warrants and to make arrests.

152 (d)(1) The Governor may appoint as a limited governmental notaries-notary public an individual who otherwise
153 ~~meet-meets~~ the requirements of § 4301(b) ~~or (e) of this title provided:~~ of this title if all of the following apply:

154 (1)a. The individual is an employee of a state governmental agency or ~~unit; or~~ unit or an employee of a
155 qualified police agency.

156 (2) ~~The individual is an employee of a qualified police agency as defined in subsection (e) of this section~~
157 ~~above; and~~

158 (3)b. The individual submits all of the following forms to be established by the Secretary:

159 a.1. An application form completed by the ~~applicant; and~~ individual.

160 b.2. An employer request and approval form.

161 (2)a. ~~Such appointments shall expire upon~~ An appointment under paragraph (d)(1) of this section expires on
162 the end of the notary’s individual’s employment with the State a state governmental agency or unit or qualified police
163 agency and ~~shall is to be~~ made without charge to the appointee or the agency or unit. Any such notary, so appointed
164 shall have no authority to perform any duties with respect to such office or to take affidavits or acknowledgements,
165 except for those duties established by their respective agency or unit. The notaries public so appointed shall make no
166 charge for any service rendered. The engraving of the notary seal shall comply with § 4310(a) of this title except that
167 the ~~Commission expiration date statement required by such subsection shall be satisfied by the phrase “My~~
168 ~~Commission expires upon office.”~~ A notary public appointed under this subsection that transfers employment to

169 another state governmental agency or unit or qualified police agency shall notify the Secretary of such change within
170 30 days. The notary may only retain the appointment upon receipt of an employer request and approval form from the
171 agency or unit to which the notary transferred. unit or qualified police agency.

172 b. An individual appointed under paragraph (d)(1) of this section may not do any of the following:

173 1. Perform a notarial act other than a notarial act authorized by the individual's state governmental
174 agency or unit or qualified police agency.

175 2. Charge for a service rendered.

176 c. Except for the expiration date statement, which must state "My Commission expires upon office", the
177 individual's official stamp must comply with § 4330 of this title.

178 d. If the individual transfers employment to another state governmental agency or unit or qualified police agency,
179 the individual shall notify the Secretary of State of the transfer within 30 days. The individual may retain the appointment
180 only if the individual provides to the Secretary of State an employer request and approval form from the agency or unit or
181 qualified police agency to which the individual transferred.

182 Section 4. Amend § 4307, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
183 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

184 § 4307. Term of office; fees; resignation.

185 (a) ~~Notaries public shall~~An individual is to be initially commissioned as a notary public for the a term of 2 years.
186 ~~Any A~~ notary public who wishes to renew ~~that the~~ notary public's ~~own~~ commission may request a 2-year reappointment or
187 a 4-year reappointment. ~~A notary applicant~~An individual must pay a nonrefundable application fee of \$60 for a 2-year term
188 or \$90 for a 4-year term.

189 (b) ~~Electronic notaries public shall be commissioned for the term of 2 years. An electronic notary applicant must~~
190 ~~pay a nonrefundable application fee of \$60. The Secretary may establish such other fees to cover the actual costs incurred~~
191 ~~by the State to issue or provide any special identification cards, hardware or other related materials, technologies or training~~
192 ~~to electronic notaries public.~~ [Repealed.]

193 (c) ~~The Secretary may establish a schedule of fees for each electronic notarial act or service, not to exceed \$10 per~~
194 ~~notarial act or service.~~ [Repealed.]

195 (d) ~~Every notary~~A notary public who wishes to resign from office or who no longer meets the qualifications for a
196 commission during ~~their the~~ notary's term of office shall immediately mail or deliver the official commission to the
197 Secretary of State, who shall cancel the same.

198 (e) ~~Every notary who is registered to perform electronic notarizations who wishes to resign or who no longer~~
199 ~~meets the qualifications for a commission or whose term of office shall have expired shall immediately erase, delete or~~
200 ~~destroy the coding, disk, certificate, card, software or password that enables the electronic affixation of the notary's official~~
201 ~~electronic signature or seal and shall so certify to the Secretary. The failure of an electronic notary to comply with this~~
202 ~~subsection may result in the Secretary imposing a civil penalty on the notary of \$500. [Repealed.]~~

203 (f) If any person shall knowingly or wilfully make any false or fraudulent statement or misrepresentation in or with
204 reference to any application for a notary commission or any other document required by this chapter, ~~such person shall~~
205 ~~be~~ the person is guilty of perjury.

206 Section 5. Amend § 4308, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
207 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

208 § 4308. ~~Oath.~~ Oath of office.

209 ~~The notaries and resident electronic notaries shall severally~~ A notary public shall take and subscribe the oath or
210 affirmation prescribed by ~~article~~ Article XIV of the Constitution of this State. ~~The nonresident electronic notaries shall~~
211 ~~severally take and subscribe the oath or affirmation on a commission issued by the Secretary before a notary public or other~~
212 ~~officer authorized to administer oaths. Notaries and electronic notaries shall be~~ A notary public is exempt from the
213 recordation of the oath of office prescribed by § 9605(a) of Title 9. ~~Notaries and electronic notaries shall not be permitted~~
214 ~~to~~ A notary public may not perform notarial acts until a copy of the fully executed oath is received by the Secretary of State
215 in an electronic or paper document format deemed acceptable by the Secretary of State.

216 Section 6. Amend § 4309, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
217 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

218 § 4309. Seal and powers.

219 (a) ~~The notary shall have a seal and shall exercise the powers and perform the duties belonging to that office. The~~
220 ~~notary shall also have power to take the acknowledgement of deeds and other instruments. The notary public must ensure,~~
221 ~~either from personal knowledge of identity or from satisfactory evidence of identity as defined in § 4321 of this title, that~~
222 ~~the individual whose presence and signature is being certified is in fact the person he or she claims to be.~~

223 (b) ~~A notary who has registered with the Secretary to perform electronic notarizations as required by § 4302 of~~
224 ~~this title shall have an electronic seal and may perform a notarial act by electronic means. The electronic notary must~~
225 ~~ensure, either from personal knowledge of identity or from satisfactory evidence of identity as defined in § 4321 of this~~
226 ~~title, that the individual whose presence and signature is being certified is in fact the person he or she claims to be.~~

227 ~~(c) A notary public or electronic notary public shall not notarize a document without the person signing the~~
228 ~~document being personally present. [Repealed.]~~

229 Section 7. Amend § 4310, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
230 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

231 § 4310. Engraving of seal; effect of use of nonconforming seal; electronic notarial seal; notary's official signature;
232 electronic signature.

233 (a) ~~The seal required by § 4309 of this title shall be used in the transaction of official business by notaries public.~~
234 ~~Each notary public shall provide, keep and use a seal that is either an engraved embossed seal or a black inked rubber~~
235 ~~stamp seal to be used on the paper document being notarized. The seal shall contain the notary's name exactly as it appears~~
236 ~~on the commission, the words "My Commission expires on" and the commission expiration date and the words "Notary~~
237 ~~Public" and "State of Delaware."~~

238 (b) ~~If the official seal of any notary public is not engraved in conformity with this section, it shall not invalidate an~~
239 ~~official act, but such act shall be as valid as though the seal had been engraved in conformity with the requirements of this~~
240 ~~section.~~

241 (c) ~~The electronic seal required by § 4309 of this title shall be used in the transaction of all official electronic~~
242 ~~notarial acts and shall contain the notary's name exactly as it appears on the commission, the words "My Commission~~
243 ~~expires on" and the commission expiration date and the words "Notary Public" and "State of Delaware."~~

244 (d) ~~In acting as a notary public, a notary shall sign the notary's name exactly and only as it appears on the~~
245 ~~commission, or otherwise execute the notary's electronic signature in a manner that attributes such signature to the notary~~
246 ~~public identified on the commission.~~

247 (e) ~~The notary's official electronic seal and signature shall be attached to an electronic document in a manner that~~
248 ~~is capable of independent verification and prevents any subsequent changes or modifications to the electronic document.~~

249 (f) ~~A notary performing electronic notarial acts shall:~~

250 (1) ~~Use an electronic seal and signature that conform to generally accepted standards for secure electronic~~
251 ~~notarization;~~

252 (2) ~~Use the notary's electronic seal and signature only for the purpose of performing electronic notarial acts;~~

253 (3) ~~Take reasonable steps to ensure that any registered device used to create an electronic signature is current~~
254 ~~and has not been revoked or terminated by its issuing or registering authority;~~

255 (4) ~~Keep the electronic seal and signature secure under the notary's exclusive control and shall not allow them~~
256 ~~to be used by any other person; and~~

257 (5) Take reasonable steps to ensure the integrity, security and authenticity of electronic notarizations.

258 ~~(g) Immediately upon discovering that the notary's physical or electronic seal, electronic signature or official~~

259 ~~journal required under § 4314 of this title has been lost, stolen or may be otherwise used by a person other than the notary,~~

260 ~~the notary shall immediately notify the Secretary who shall disable use of the missing technology on any electronic system~~

261 ~~of the Secretary. Upon request of the electronic notary and completion of a new registration form:~~

262 ~~(1) Signed by the applicant using the electronic signature described in the form; and~~

263 ~~(2) Including any decrypting instructions, codes, keys, or software that allow the registration to be read;~~

264 ~~the Secretary may reinstate the electronic notary. The electronic notary may notify appropriate law enforcement~~

265 ~~agency in the case of theft or vandalism.~~

266 ~~(h) Any notary public failing to comply with the requirements of this section may be removed by the Governor for~~

267 ~~neglect. [Repealed.]~~

268 Section 8. Amend § 4311, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and

269 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

270 § 4311. Fees for services.

271 (a) The maximum fee a notary public ~~can~~ may charge for any paper notarial act a notarial act performed with

272 respect to a tangible record is \$5.00.

273 (b) The maximum fee a notary public ~~can~~ may charge for any electronic notarial act a notarial act performed with

274 respect to an electronic record is \$25.

275 (c) The fees prescribed in this section ~~shall bear~~ the maximum fees to be charged by any a notary public and,

276 upon violation hereof, on violation of this section, the Secretary of State may revoke the commission of such notary, and

277 such notary shall the notary public and the notary public may not be reappointed within a period of 2 years.

278 (d) A notary public may choose to waive any fee for any notarial act; ~~provided, however, that a notary public may~~

279 ~~not waive any fee or fees for an electronic notarial act or service assessed pursuant to § 4307(e) of this title. act.~~

280 Section 9. Amend § 4313, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and

281 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

282 § 4313. Commission; signature of Governor; seal.

283 (a) The commission appointing a notary public ~~or electronic notary public shall~~ must be in ~~such a~~ a form as the

284 Secretary of State ~~shall designate~~ designates and ~~shall~~ must be executed by the Governor and the Secretary of State. The

285 signatures required by this subsection ~~shall be~~ may be satisfied by an electronic or a facsimile signature which may be

286 engraved, ~~printed~~ printed, or stamped ~~thereon.~~ on the commission.

287 (b) ~~The commission shall have placed thereon the impression of the Great Seal of the State, or a facsimile of the~~
288 ~~Great Seal shall Seal, must be engraved or printed thereon.~~ on the commission.

289 Section 10. Amend § 4314, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
290 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

291 § 4314. Official electronic journal of notarial acts.

292 (a) ~~A notary performing electronic notarial acts shall keep, maintain, protect and provide for lawful inspection an~~
293 ~~electronic journal of notarial acts. The Secretary shall establish standards for the maintenance of electronic journals.~~

294 (b) ~~For every electronic notarial act, the notary shall record in the journal at the time of notarization the following:~~

295 (1) ~~The date and time of day of the notarial act;~~

296 (2) ~~The type of notarial act;~~

297 (3) ~~The type, title or a description of the document or proceeding;~~

298 (4) ~~The printed name and address of each person whose signature is notarized or who requests a notarial act;~~

299 (5) ~~The evidence of identity of each principal, in the form of either: a statement that the person is “personally~~
300 ~~known” to the notary; a notation of the type of identification document and the identification number on such~~
301 ~~identification document; or the printed name and address of the credible witness swearing or affirming to the person’s~~
302 ~~identity;~~

303 (6) ~~The fee, if any, charged for the notarial act; and,~~

304 (7) ~~Such other information as the notary may deem to be necessary and appropriate.~~

305 (c) ~~A notary shall not record a Social Security or credit card number in the journal.~~

306 (d) ~~A notary shall keep the official journal secure under the notary’s exclusive control and shall not allow it to be~~
307 ~~used by any other person.~~

308 (e) ~~A notary shall maintain a backup record of an electronic journal and ensure protection of such backup record~~
309 ~~from unauthorized use. The Secretary shall establish standards for backup records. [Repealed.]~~

310 Section 11. Amend Subchapter II, Chapter 43, Title 29 of the Delaware Code by repealing Subchapter II, Chapter
311 43, Title 29 of the Delaware Code in its entirety and making deletions as shown by strike through and insertions as shown
312 by underline as follows:

313 Subchapter II. Revised Uniform Law on Notarial Acts.

314 § 4315. Short title.

315 This subchapter may be cited as the Revised Uniform Law on Notarial Acts.

316 § 4316. Definitions.

317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345

For purposes of this chapter:

(1) "Acknowledgment" means a declaration by an individual before a notarial officer that the individual has signed a record for the purpose stated in the record and, if the record is signed in a representative capacity, that the individual signed the record with proper authority and signed it as the act of the individual or entity identified in the record.

(2) "Electronic" means relating to technology having electrical, digital, magnetic, wireless, optical, electromagnetic, or similar capabilities.

(3) "Electronic signature" means an electronic symbol, sound, or process attached to or logically associated with a record and executed or adopted by an individual with the intent to sign the record.

(4) "In a representative capacity" means acting as one of the following:

a. An authorized officer, agent, partner, trustee, or other representative for a person other than an individual.

b. A public officer, personal representative, guardian, or other representative, in the capacity stated in a record.

c. An agent or attorney-in-fact for a principal.

d. An authorized representative of another in any other capacity.

(5)a. "Notarial act" means an act, whether performed with respect to a tangible or electronic record, that a notarial officer may perform under the law of this State.

b. "Notarial act" includes taking an acknowledgment, administering an oath or affirmation, taking a verification on oath or affirmation, witnessing or attesting a signature, certifying or attesting a copy, and noting a protest of a negotiable instrument.

(6) "Notarial officer" means a notary public or other individual authorized to perform a notarial act.

(7) "Notary public" means an individual commissioned to perform a notarial act under Subchapter I of this chapter.

(8) "Official stamp" means a physical image affixed to or embossed on a tangible record or an electronic image attached to or logically associated with an electronic record.

(9) "Person" means an individual, corporation, business trust, statutory trust, estate, trust, partnership, limited liability company, association, joint venture, public corporation, government or governmental subdivision, agency, or instrumentality, or any other legal or commercial entity.

346 (10) “Record” means information that is inscribed on a tangible medium or that is stored in an electronic or
347 other medium and is retrievable in perceivable form.

348 (11) “Sign” means, with present intent to authenticate or adopt a record, to do any of the following:

349 a. Execute or adopt a tangible symbol.

350 b. Attach to or logically associate with the record an electronic symbol, sound, or process.

351 (12) “Signature” means a tangible symbol or an electronic signature that evidences the signing of a record.

352 (13) “Stamping device” means any of the following:

353 a. A physical device capable of affixing to or embossing on a tangible record an official stamp.

354 b. An electronic device or process capable of attaching to or logically associating with an electronic
355 record an official stamp.

356 (14) “State” means a state of the United States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin
357 Islands, or any territory or insular possession subject to the jurisdiction of the United States.

358 (15) “Verification on oath or affirmation” means a declaration, made by an individual on oath or affirmation
359 before a notarial officer, that a statement in a record is true.

360 § 4317. Authority to perform notarial act.

361 (a) A notarial officer may perform a notarial act authorized by this subchapter or by law of this State other than
362 this subchapter.

363 (b) A notarial officer may not perform a notarial act with respect to a record to which the officer or the officer’s
364 spouse is a party or in which either of them has a direct beneficial interest. A notarial act performed in violation of this
365 subsection is voidable.

366 (c) A notarial officer may certify that a tangible copy of an electronic record is an accurate copy of the electronic
367 record.

368 § 4318. Requirements for certain notarial acts.

369 (a) A notarial officer who takes an acknowledgment of a record shall determine, from personal knowledge or
370 satisfactory evidence of the identity of the individual, that the individual appearing before the officer and making the
371 acknowledgment has the identity claimed and that the signature on the record is the signature of the individual.

372 (b) A notarial officer who takes a verification of a statement on oath or affirmation shall determine, from personal
373 knowledge or satisfactory evidence of the identity of the individual, that the individual appearing before the officer and
374 making the verification has the identity claimed and that the signature on the statement verified is the signature of the
375 individual.

376 (c) A notarial officer who witnesses or attests to a signature shall determine, from personal knowledge or
377 satisfactory evidence of the identity of the individual, that the individual appearing before the officer and signing the record
378 has the identity claimed.

379 (d) A notarial officer who certifies or attests a copy of a record or an item that was copied shall determine that the
380 copy is a full, true, and accurate transcription or reproduction of the record or item.

381 (e) A notarial officer who makes or notes a protest of a negotiable instrument shall determine the matters set forth
382 in § 3-505 of Title 6.

383 § 4319. Personal appearance required.

384 Except as provided under § 4320 of this title, if a notarial act relates to a statement made in or a signature executed
385 on a record, the individual making the statement or executing the signature shall appear personally before the notarial
386 officer.

387 § 4320. Notarial act performed for remotely located individual.

388 (a) For purposes of this section:

389 (1) “Communication technology” means an electronic device or process that does both of the following:

390 a. Allows a notarial officer and a remotely located individual to communicate with each other
391 simultaneously by sight and sound.

392 b. When necessary and consistent with other applicable law, facilitates communication with a remotely
393 located individual who has a vision, hearing, or speech impairment.

394 (2) “Foreign state” means a jurisdiction other than the United States, a state, or a federally recognized Indian
395 tribe.

396 (3) “Identity proofing” means a process or service by which a third person provides a notarial officer with a
397 means to verify the identity of a remotely located individual by a review of personal information from public or private
398 data sources.

399 (4) “Outside the United States” means a location outside the geographic boundaries of the United States,
400 Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin Islands, and any territory, insular possession, or other location subject to the
401 jurisdiction of the United States.

402 (5) “Remotely located individual” means an individual who is not in the physical presence of the notarial
403 officer who performs a notarial act under subsection (c) of this section.

404 (b) A remotely located individual may comply with § 4319 of this title by using communication technology to
405 appear before a notarial officer.

406 (c) A notarial officer located in this State may use communication technology to perform a notarial act for a
407 remotely located individual if all of the following apply:

408 (1) The notarial officer has one or more of the following:

409 a. Personal knowledge under § 4321(a) of this title of the identity of the remotely located individual.

410 b. Satisfactory evidence of the identity of the remotely located individual by oath or affirmation from a
411 credible witness appearing before the notarial officer under § 4321(b) of this title or this section.

412 c. Obtained satisfactory evidence of the identity of the remotely located individual by using at least 2
413 different types of identity proofing.

414 (2) The notarial officer is able reasonably to confirm that a record before the notarial officer is the same
415 record in which the remotely located individual made a statement or on which the individual executed a signature.

416 (3) The notarial officer, or a person acting on behalf of the notarial officer, creates an audio-visual recording
417 of the performance of the notarial act.

418 (4) For a remotely located individual located outside the United States, all of the following apply:

419 a. Any of the following apply:

420 1. The record is to be filed with or relates to a matter before a public official or court, governmental
421 entity, or other entity subject to the jurisdiction of the United States.

422 2. The record involves property located in the territorial jurisdiction of the United States or involves
423 a transaction substantially connected with the United States.

424 b. The act of making the statement or signing the record is not prohibited by the foreign state in which the
425 remotely located individual is located.

426 (d) A notarial officer located in this State may use communication technology under subsection (c) of this section
427 to take an acknowledgment of a signature on a tangible record physically present before the notarial officer if the record is
428 displayed to and identified by the remotely located individual during the audio-visual recording under paragraph (c)(3) of
429 this section.

430 (e) The requirement under paragraph (c)(2) of this section for the performance of a notarial act with respect to a
431 tangible record not physically present before the notarial officer is satisfied if all of the following apply:

432 (1) The remotely located individual does all of the following:

433 a. During the audio-visual recording under paragraph (c)(3) of this section, signs all of the following:

434 1. The record.

435 2. A declaration, in substantially the following form, that is part of or securely attached to the record:

436 I declare under penalty of perjury that the record of which this declaration is a part or to which it
437 is attached is the same record on which (name of notarial officer), a notarial officer, performed a notarial
438 act and before whom I appeared by means of communication technology on (date).

439 _____

440 Signature of remotely located individual

441 _____

442 Printed name of remotely located individual

443 b. Sends the record and declaration to the notarial officer not later than 3 days after the notarial act was
444 performed.

445 (2) The notarial officer does all of the following:

446 a. In the audio-visual recording under paragraph (c)(3) of this section, records the individual signing the
447 record and declaration.

448 b. After receipt of the record and declaration from the individual, executes a certificate of notarial act
449 under § 4328 of this title, which must include a statement in substantially the following form:

450 I (name of notarial officer) witnessed, by means of communication technology, (name of remotely
451 located individual) sign the attached record and declaration on (date).

452 (f) A notarial act performed in compliance with subsection (e) of this section complies with § 4328(a)(1) of this
453 title and is effective on the date the remotely located individual signed the declaration under paragraph (e)(1)a.2. of this
454 section.

455 (g) Subsection (e) of this section does not preclude use of another procedure to satisfy paragraph (c)(2) of this
456 section for a notarial act performed with respect to a tangible record.

457 (h) A notarial officer located in this State may use communication technology under subsection (c) of this section
458 to administer an oath to a remotely located individual if, except as otherwise provided by other law of this State, the notarial
459 officer does all of the following:

460 (1) Identifies the individual under paragraph (c)(1) of this section.

461 (2) Creates or causes the creation under paragraph (c)(3) of this section of an audio-visual recording of the
462 individual taking the oath.

463 (3) Retains or causes the retention under subsection (k) of this section of the recording.

464 (i) If a notarial act is performed under this section, the certificate of notarial act under § 4328 of this title and the
465 short-form certificate under § 4329 of this title must indicate that the notarial act was performed using communication
466 technology.

467 (j) A short-form certificate under § 4329 of this title for a notarial act subject to this section is sufficient if it does
468 any of the following:

469 (1) Complies with regulations adopted under paragraph (m)(1) of this section.

470 (2) Is in the form under § 4329 of this title and contains a statement in substantially the following form: This
471 notarial act involved the use of communication technology.

472 (k) A notarial officer, a guardian, conservator, or agent of a notarial officer, or a personal representative of a
473 deceased notarial officer shall retain the audio-visual recording created under paragraph (c)(3) of this section or cause the
474 recording to be retained by a repository designated by or on behalf of the person required to retain the recording. Unless a
475 different period is required by rule adopted under paragraph (m)(4) of this section, the recording must be retained for a
476 period of at least 10 years.

477 (l)(1) Before a notarial officer performs the notarial officer's initial notarial act under this section, the notarial
478 officer shall do all of the following:

479 a. Notify the Secretary of State that the notarial officer will be performing notarial acts with respect to
480 remotely located individuals.

481 b. Identify for the Secretary of State the technologies the notarial officer intends to use.

482 (2) If the Secretary of State has established standards under subsection (m) of this section and § 4338 of this
483 title for approval of communication technology or identity proofing, the communication technology and identity
484 proofing must conform to the standards.

485 (m) In addition to adopting regulations under § 4338 of this title, the Secretary of State may adopt regulations
486 under this section regarding performance of a notarial act. The regulations may do any of the following:

487 (1) Prescribe the means of performing a notarial act involving a remotely located individual using
488 communication technology.

489 (2) Establish standards for communication technology and identity proofing.

490 (3) Establish requirements or procedures to approve providers of communication technology and the process
491 of identity proofing.

492 (4) Establish standards and a period for the retention of an audio-visual recording created under paragraph
493 (c)(3) of this section.

494 (5) Prescribe methods for a notarial officer to confirm under subsections (d) and (e) of this section the identity
495 of a tangible record.

496 (n) Before adopting, amending, or repealing a regulation governing performance of a notarial act with respect to a
497 remotely located individual, the Secretary of State must consider all of the following:

498 (1) The most recent standards regarding the performance of a notarial act with respect to a remotely located
499 individual promulgated by national standard-setting organizations and the recommendations of the National
500 Association of Secretaries of State.

501 (2) Standards, practices, and customs of other jurisdictions that have laws substantially similar to this section.

502 (3) The views of governmental officials and entities and other interested persons.

503 (o) By allowing its communication technology or identity proofing to facilitate a notarial act for a remotely located
504 individual or by providing storage of the audio-visual recording under paragraph (c)(3) of this section, the provider of the
505 communication technology, identity proofing, or storage appoints the Secretary of State as the provider's agent for service
506 of process in any civil action in this State related to the notarial act.

507 § 4321. Identification of individual.

508 (a) A notarial officer has personal knowledge of the identity of an individual appearing before the officer if the
509 individual is personally known to the officer through dealings sufficient to provide reasonable certainty that the individual
510 has the identity claimed.

511 (b) A notarial officer has satisfactory evidence of the identity of an individual appearing before the officer if the
512 officer can identify the individual by any of the following:

513 (1) By means of any of the following:

514 a. A passport, driver's license, or government issued nondriver identification card, which is current and
515 not expired before performance of the notarial act.

516 b. Another form of government identification issued to an individual, which is current and not expired
517 before performance of the notarial act, contains the signature or a photograph of the individual, and is satisfactory
518 to the officer.

519 (2) By a verification on oath or affirmation of a credible witness personally appearing before the officer and
520 known to the officer or whom the officer can identify on the basis of a passport, driver's license, or government issued
521 nondriver identification card, which is current and not expired before performance of the notarial act.

522 (c) A notarial officer may require an individual to provide additional information or identification credentials
523 necessary to assure the officer of the identity of the individual.

524 § 4322. Authority to refuse to perform notarial act.

525 (a) A notarial officer may refuse to perform a notarial act if the officer is not satisfied that all of the following
526 apply:

527 (1) The individual executing the record is competent or has the capacity to execute the record.

528 (2) The individual's signature is knowingly and voluntarily made.

529 (b) A notarial officer may refuse to perform a notarial act unless refusal is prohibited by law other than this
530 subchapter.

531 § 4322A. Signature if individual unable to sign.

532 If an individual is physically unable to sign a record, the individual may direct an individual other than the notarial
533 officer to sign the individual's name on the record. The notarial officer shall insert "Signature affixed by (name of other
534 individual) at the direction of (name of individual)" or words of similar import.

535 § 4323. Notarial act in this State.

536 (a) A notarial act may be performed in this State by any of the following:

537 (1) A notary public of this State.

538 (2) A judge, clerk, or deputy clerk of a court of this State.

539 (3) An individual licensed to practice law in this State.

540 (4) An individual authorized by law of this State to administer oaths.

541 (5) Any other individual authorized to perform the specific act by the law of this State.

542 (b) The signature and title of an individual performing a notarial act in this State are prima facie evidence that the
543 signature is genuine and that the individual holds the designated title.

544 (c) The signature and title of a notarial officer described in paragraph (a)(1), (a)(2), or (a)(3) of this section
545 conclusively establish the authority of the officer to perform the notarial act.

546 § 4324. Notarial act in another state.

547 (a) A notarial act performed in another state has the same effect under the law of this State as if performed by a
548 notarial officer of this State, if the act performed in that state is performed by any of the following:

549 (1) A notary public of that state.

550 (2) A judge, clerk, or deputy clerk of a court of that state.

551 (3) Any other individual authorized by the law of that state to perform the notarial act.

552 (b) The signature and title of an individual performing a notarial act in another state are prima facie evidence that
553 the signature is genuine and that the individual holds the designated title.

554 (c) The signature and title of a notarial officer described in paragraph (a)(1) or (a)(2) of this section conclusively
555 establish the authority of the officer to perform the notarial act.

556 § 4325. Notarial act under authority of federally recognized Indian tribe.

557 (a) A notarial act performed under the authority and in the jurisdiction of a federally recognized Indian tribe has
558 the same effect as if performed by a notarial officer of this State, if the act performed in the jurisdiction of the tribe is
559 performed by any of the following:

560 (1) A notary public of the tribe.

561 (2) A judge, clerk, or deputy clerk of a court of the tribe.

562 (3) Any other individual authorized by the law of the tribe to perform the notarial act.

563 (b) The signature and title of an individual performing a notarial act under the authority of and in the jurisdiction
564 of a federally recognized Indian tribe are prima facie evidence that the signature is genuine and that the individual holds the
565 designated title.

566 (c) The signature and title of a notarial officer described in paragraph (a)(1) or (a)(2) of this section conclusively
567 establish the authority of the officer to perform the notarial act.

568 § 4326. Notarial act under federal authority.

569 (a) A notarial act performed under federal law has the same effect under the law of this State as if performed by a
570 notarial officer of this State, if the act performed under federal law is performed by any of the following:

571 (1) A judge, clerk, or deputy clerk of a federal court.

572 (2) An individual in military service or performing duties under the authority of military service who is
573 authorized to perform notarial acts under federal law.

574 (3) An individual designated a notarizing officer by the United States Department of State for performing
575 notarial acts overseas.

576 (4) Any other individual authorized by federal law to perform the notarial act.

577 (b) The signature and title of an individual acting under federal authority and performing a notarial act are prima
578 facie evidence that the signature is genuine and that the individual holds the designated title.

579 (c) The signature and title of an officer described in paragraph (a)(1), (a)(2), or (a)(3) of this section conclusively
580 establish the authority of the officer to perform the notarial act.

581 § 4327. Foreign notarial act.

582 (a) In this section, “foreign state” means a government other than the United States, a state, or a federally
583 recognized Indian tribe.

584 (b) If a notarial act is performed under authority and in the jurisdiction of a foreign state or constituent unit of the
585 foreign state or is performed under the authority of a multinational or international governmental organization, the act has
586 the same effect under the law of this State as if performed by a notarial officer of this State.

587 (c) If the title of office and indication of authority to perform notarial acts in a foreign state appears in a digest of
588 foreign law or in a list customarily used as a source for that information, the authority of an officer with that title to perform
589 notarial acts is conclusively established.

590 (d) The signature and official stamp of an individual holding an office described in subsection (c) of this section
591 are prima facie evidence that the signature is genuine and the individual holds the designated title.

592 (e) An apostille in the form prescribed by the Hague Convention of October 5, 1961, and issued by a foreign state
593 party to the Convention conclusively establishes that the signature of the notarial officer is genuine and that the officer
594 holds the indicated office.

595 (f) A consular authentication issued by an individual designated by the United States Department of State as a
596 notarizing officer for performing notarial acts overseas and attached to the record with respect to which the notarial act is
597 performed conclusively establishes that the signature of the notarial officer is genuine and that the officer holds the
598 indicated office.

599 § 4328. Certificate of notarial act.

600 (a) A notarial act must be evidenced by a certificate. The certificate must meet all of the following:

601 (1) Be executed contemporaneously with the performance of the notarial act.

602 (2) Be signed and dated by the notarial officer and, if the notarial officer is a notary public, be signed in the
603 same manner as on file with the Secretary of State.

604 (3) Identify the jurisdiction in which the notarial act is performed.

605 (4) Contain the title of office of the notarial officer.

606 (5) If the notarial officer is a notary public, indicate the date of expiration, if any, of the officer's commission.

607 (b) If a notarial act regarding a tangible record is performed by a notary public, an official stamp must be affixed
608 to or embossed on the certificate. If a notarial act is performed regarding a tangible record by a notarial officer other than a
609 notary public and the certificate contains the information specified in paragraph (a)(2), (a)(3), and (a)(4) of this section, an
610 official stamp may be affixed to or embossed on the certificate. If a notarial act regarding an electronic record is performed
611 by a notarial officer and the certificate contains the information specified in paragraph (a)(2), (a)(3), and (a)(4) of this
612 section, an official stamp may be attached to or logically associated with the certificate.

613 (c) A certificate of a notarial act is sufficient if it meets the requirements of subsections (a) and (b) of this section
614 and any of the following:

615 (1) Is in a short form set forth in § 4329 of this title.

616 (2) Is in a form otherwise permitted by the law of this State.

617 (3) Is in a form permitted by the law applicable in the jurisdiction in which the notarial act was performed.

618 (4) Sets forth the actions of the notarial officer and the actions are sufficient to meet the requirements of the
619 notarial act as provided in §§ 4318, 4319, and 4321 of this title or law of this State other than this subchapter.

620 (d) By executing a certificate of a notarial act, a notarial officer certifies that the officer has complied with the
621 requirements and made the determinations specified in §§ 4317, 4318, and 4319 of this title.

622 (e) A notarial officer may not affix the officer's signature to, or logically associate it with, a certificate until the
623 notarial act has been performed.

624 (f) If a notarial act is performed regarding a tangible record, a certificate must be part of, or securely attached to,
625 the record. If a notarial act is performed regarding an electronic record, the certificate must be affixed to, or logically
626 associated with, the electronic record. If the Secretary of State has established standards under § 4338 of this title for
627 attaching, affixing, or logically associating the certificate, the process must conform to the standards.

628 § 4329. Short form certificates.

629 The following short form certificates of notarial acts are sufficient for the purposes indicated, if completed with
630 the information required by § 4328(a) and (b) of this title:

631 (1) For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity:

632 State of _____

633 County of _____

634 This record was acknowledged before me on _____ by _____

635 Date Name(s) of individual(s)

636 _____

637 Signature of notarial officer

638 Stamp

639 [_____]

640 Title of office

641 [My commission expires: _____]

642 (2) For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity:

643 State of _____

644 County of _____

645 This record was acknowledged before me on _____ by _____

646 Date Name(s) of individual(s)

647 as (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) of (name of party on behalf of whom record was
648 executed).

649 _____

650 Signature of notarial officer

651 Stamp

652 [_____]

653 Title of office

654 [My commission expires: _____]

655 (3) For a verification on oath or affirmation:

656 State of _____

657 County of _____

658 Signed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on _____ by _____

659 Date Name(s) of individual(s) making statement

660 _____

661 Signature of notarial officer

662 Stamp

663 [_____]

664 Title of office

665 [My commission expires: _____]

666 (4) For witnessing or attesting a signature:

667 State of _____

668 County of _____

669 Signed (or attested) before me on _____ by _____

670 Date Name(s) of individual(s)

671 _____

672 Signature of notarial officer

673

Stamp

674

[_____]

675

Title of office

676

[My commission expires: _____]

677

(5) For certifying a copy of a record:

678

State of _____

679

County of _____

680

I certify that this is a true and correct copy of a record in the possession

681

of _____.

682

Dated _____

683

684

Signature of notarial officer

685

Stamp

686

[_____]

687

Title of office

688

[My commission expires: _____]

689

§ 4330. Official stamp of a notary public.

690

The official stamp of a notary public must meet all of the following:

691

(1) Include all of the following:

692

a. The notary public's name as it appears on file with the Secretary of State.

693

b. "State of Delaware".

694

c. "My Commission expires on" and the commission expiration date.

695

d. Other information required by the Secretary of State.

696

(2) Be capable of being copied together with the record to which it is affixed or attached or with which it is

697

logically associated.

698

§ 4331. Stamping device of a notary public.

699

(a) A notary public is responsible for the security of the notary public's stamping device and may not allow

700

another individual to use the device to perform a notarial act.

701 (b) On resignation from, or the revocation or expiration of, the notary public's commission, or on the expiration of
702 the date set forth in the stamping device the notary public shall disable the stamping device by destroying, defacing,
703 damaging, erasing, or securing it against use in a manner that renders it unusable.

704 (c) On the death or adjudication of incompetency of a notary public, the notary public's personal representative or
705 guardian or any other person knowingly in possession of the stamping device shall render it unusable by destroying,
706 defacing, damaging, erasing, or securing it against use in a manner that renders it unusable.

707 (d) If a notary public's stamping device is lost or stolen, the notary public or the notary public's personal
708 representative or guardian shall promptly notify the Secretary of State on discovering that the device is lost or stolen.

709 § 4332. Journal of a notary public.

710 (a) A notary public shall maintain a journal in which the notary public chronicles all notarial acts that the notary
711 public performs. The notary public shall retain the journal for 10 years after the performance of the last notarial act
712 chronicled in the journal.

713 (b) A journal may be created on a tangible medium or in an electronic format. A notary public shall maintain only
714 one journal at a time to chronicle all notarial acts, whether those notarial acts are performed regarding tangible or electronic
715 records. If the journal is maintained on a tangible medium, it must be a permanent, bound register with numbered pages. If
716 the journal is maintained in an electronic format, it must be in a permanent, tamper-evident electronic format complying
717 with regulations adopted by the Secretary of State.

718 (c) An entry in a journal must be made contemporaneously with performance of the notarial act and contain all of
719 the following information:

720 (1) The date and time of the notarial act.

721 (2) A description of the record, if any, and type of notarial act.

722 (3) The full name and address of each individual for whom the notarial act is performed.

723 (4) If identity of the individual is based on personal knowledge, a statement to that effect.

724 (5) If identity of the individual is based on satisfactory evidence, a brief description of the method of
725 identification and the identification credential presented, if any, including the date of issuance and expiration of any
726 identification credential.

727 (6) The fee, if any, charged by the notary public.

728 (d) If a notary public's journal is lost or stolen, the notary public shall promptly notify the Secretary of State on
729 discovering that the journal is lost or stolen.

730 (e) On resignation from, or the revocation or suspension of, a notary public's commission, the notary public shall
731 retain the notary public's journal in accordance with subsection (a) of this section and inform the Secretary of State where
732 the journal is located.

733 (f) Instead of retaining a journal as provided in subsections (a) and (e) of this section, a current or former notary
734 public may transmit the journal to the Secretary of State or a repository approved by the Secretary of State.

735 (g) On the death or adjudication of incompetency of a current or former notary public, the notary public's personal
736 representative or guardian or any other person knowingly in possession of the journal shall transmit it to the Secretary of
737 State or a repository approved by the Secretary of State.

738 § 4333. Notification regarding performance of notarial act on electronic record; selection of technology;
739 acceptance of tangible copy of electronic record.

740 (a) A notarial officer may select one or more tamper-evident technologies to perform notarial acts with respect to
741 electronic records. A person may not require a notarial officer to perform a notarial act with respect to an electronic record
742 with a technology that the notarial officer has not selected.

743 (b)(1) Before a notarial officer performs the notarial officer's initial notarial act with respect to an electronic
744 record, a notarial officer shall do all of the following:

745 a. Notify the Secretary of State that the notarial officer will be performing notarial acts with respect to
746 electronic records.

747 b. Identify for the Secretary of State the technology the notarial officer intends to use.

748 (2) If the Secretary of State has established standards for approval of technology under § 4338 of this title, the
749 technology must conform to the standards.

750 (3) If the technology conforms to the standards, the Secretary of State shall approve the use of the technology.

751 (c) A Recorder of Deeds may accept for recording a tangible copy of an electronic record containing a notarial
752 certificate as satisfying any requirement that a record accepted for recording be an original, if the notarial officer executing
753 the notarial certificate certifies that the tangible copy is an accurate copy of the electronic record.

754 § 4334. Grounds to deny, refuse to renew, revoke, suspend, or impose a condition on a commission of notary
755 public.

756 (a) The Governor may deny, refuse to renew, revoke, suspend, or impose a condition on a commission as notary
757 public for any act or omission that demonstrates the individual lacks the honesty, integrity, competence, or reliability to act
758 as a notary public, including any of the following:

759 (1) Failure to comply with this chapter.

760 (2) A fraudulent, dishonest, or deceitful misstatement or omission in the application for a commission as a
761 notary public submitted to the Secretary of State.

762 (3) A conviction of the applicant or notary public of any felony or a crime involving fraud, dishonesty, or
763 deceit.

764 (4) A finding against, or admission of liability by, the applicant or notary public in any legal proceeding or
765 disciplinary action based on the applicant's or notary public's fraud, dishonesty, or deceit.

766 (5) Failure by the notary public to discharge any duty required of a notary public, whether by this chapter,
767 regulations adopted by the Secretary of State, or any federal or state law.

768 (6) Use of false or misleading advertising or representation by the notary public representing that the notary
769 public has a duty, right, or privilege that the notary public does not have.

770 (7) Violation by the notary public of a regulation adopted by the Secretary of State regarding a notary public.

771 (8) Denial, refusal to renew, revocation, suspension, or conditioning of a notary public commission in another
772 state.

773 (9) A violation under § 4311(c) of this title.

774 (b) If the Governor denies, refuses to renew, revokes, suspends, or imposes conditions on a commission as a
775 notary public, the applicant or notary public is entitled to timely notice and hearing in accordance with Chapter 101 of this
776 title.

777 (c) The authority of the Governor to deny, refuse to renew, suspend, revoke, or impose conditions on a
778 commission as a notary public does not prevent a person from seeking and obtaining other criminal or civil remedies
779 provided by law.

780 § 4335. Database of notaries public.

781 The Secretary of State shall maintain an electronic database of notaries public that does all of the following:

782 (1) Permits a person to verify the authority of a notary public to perform notarial acts.

783 (2) Indicates whether a notary public has notified the Secretary of State that the notary public will be
784 performing notarial acts on electronic records or notarial acts for remotely located individuals under § 4320 of this title.

785 § 4336. Prohibited acts of a notary public.

786 (a) A commission as a notary public does not authorize an individual to do any of the following:

787 (1) Assist persons in drafting legal records, give legal advice, or otherwise practice law.

788 (2) Act as an immigration consultant or an expert on immigration matters.

789 (3) Represent a person in a judicial or administrative proceeding relating to immigration to the United States,
790 United States citizenship, or related matters.

791 (4) Receive compensation for performing any of the activities listed in this subsection.

792 (b) A notary public may not engage in false or deceptive advertising.

793 (c) A notary public, other than an attorney licensed to practice law in this State, may not use the term “notario” or
794 “notario publico”.

795 (d)(1) A notary public, other than an attorney licensed to practice law in this State, may not advertise or represent
796 that the notary public may assist persons in drafting legal records, give legal advice, or otherwise practice law.

797 (2) If a notary public who is not an attorney licensed to practice law in this State in any manner advertises or
798 represents that the notary public offers notarial services, whether orally or in a record, including broadcast media, print
799 media, and the Internet, the notary public shall include the following statement, or an alternate statement authorized or
800 required by the Secretary of State, in the advertisement or representation, prominently and in each language used in the
801 advertisement or representation:

802 “I am not an attorney licensed to practice law in this State. I am not allowed to draft legal records, give advice
803 on legal matters, including immigration, or charge a fee for those activities.”.

804 (3) If the form of advertisement or representation is not broadcast media, print media, or the Internet and does
805 not permit inclusion of the statement required by paragraph (d)(2) of this section because of size, it must be displayed
806 prominently or provided at the place of performance of the notarial act before the notarial act is performed.

807 (e) Except as otherwise allowed by law, a notary public may not withhold access to or possession of an original
808 record provided by a person that seeks performance of a notarial act by the notary public.

809 § 4337. Validity of notarial acts.

810 Except as otherwise provided in § 4317(b) of this title, the failure of a notarial officer to perform a duty or meet a
811 requirement specified in this chapter does not invalidate a notarial act performed by the notarial officer. The validity of a
812 notarial act under this chapter does not prevent an aggrieved person from seeking to invalidate the record or transaction that
813 is the subject of the notarial act or from seeking other remedies based on law of this State other than this chapter or law of
814 the United States. This section does not validate a purported notarial act performed by an individual who does not have the
815 authority to perform notarial acts.

816 § 4338. Regulatory authority.

817 (a) The Secretary of State may adopt rules to implement this chapter. Regulations adopted regarding the
818 performance of notarial acts with respect to electronic records may not require, or accord greater legal status or effect to,

819 the implementation or application of a specific technology or technical specification. Regulations may do all of the
820 following:

821 (1) Prescribe the manner of performing notarial acts regarding tangible and electronic records.

822 (2) Include provisions to ensure that any change to or tampering with a record bearing a certificate of a
823 notarial act is self-evident.

824 (3) Include provisions to ensure integrity in the creation, transmittal, storage, or authentication of electronic
825 records or signatures.

826 (4) Prescribe the process of granting, renewing, conditioning, denying, suspending, or revoking a notary
827 public commission and assuring the trustworthiness of an individual holding a commission as notary public.

828 (5) Include provisions to prevent fraud or mistake in the performance of notarial acts.

829 (b) In adopting, amending, or repealing rules about notarial acts with respect to electronic records, the Secretary of
830 State shall consider, so far as is consistent with this subchapter, all of the following:

831 (1) The most recent standards regarding electronic records promulgated by national bodies, such as the
832 National Association of Secretaries of State.

833 (2) Standards, practices, and customs of other jurisdictions that substantially enact this subchapter.

834 (3) The views of governmental officials and entities and other interested persons.

835 § 4339. Notary public commission in effect.

836 A commission as a notary public in effect on [the effective date of this Act] continues until its date of expiration.

837 A notary public who applies to renew a commission as a notary public on or after [the effective date of this Act] is subject
838 to and shall comply with this chapter. A notary public, in performing notarial acts after [the effective date of this Act], shall
839 comply with this chapter.

840 § 4340. Applicability; savings clause.

841 (a) This subchapter applies to a notarial act performed on or after [the effective date of this Act].

842 (b) This subchapter does not affect the validity or effect of a notarial act performed before [the effective date of
843 this Act].

844 § 4341. Uniformity of application and construction.

845 In applying and construing this uniform act, consideration must be given to the need to promote uniformity of the
846 law with respect to its subject matter among states that enact it.

847 § 4342. Relation to Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act.

848 This subchapter modifies, limits, or supersedes the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act,
849 15 U.S.C. § 7001 et seq., but does not modify, limit, or supersede 15 U.S.C. § 7001(c), or authorize electronic delivery of
850 any of the notices described in 15 U.S.C. § 7003(b).

851 Section 12. Amend § 3156, Title 20 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
852 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

853 § 3156. Notarization.

854 The provisions of Paragraph B of the Eleventh Modification of the State of Emergency Declaration, dated April
855 15, 2020, shall continue in full force and effect until ~~June 30, 2022.~~ December 31, 2022.

856 Section 13. Amend § 3156, Title 20 of the Delaware Code by making deletions as shown by strike through and
857 insertions as shown by underline as follows:

858 § 3156. Notarization.

859 ~~The provisions of Paragraph B of the Eleventh Modification of the State of Emergency Declaration, dated April~~
860 ~~15, 2020, shall continue in full force and effect until December 31, 2022.~~ [Repealed.]

861 Section 14. Sections 1 through 11 and Section 13 of this Act take effect on January 1, 2023.

862 Section 15. Section 12 of this Act takes effect on enactment.

SYNOPSIS

This Act adopts the Uniform Law Commission’s (“ULC”) Revised Uniform Law on Notarial Acts (“Revised Uniform Law”). As our State continues to recover from COVID-19, chief among the changes in the Revised Uniform Law relevant to our State’s current situation are those that permit notarial acts to be performed for a remotely located individual, an individual who is not in the physical presence of the individual performing the notarial act. These revisions include recent amendments made by the ULC to respond to areas the law needed to address that were discovered during the COVID-19 pandemic, including the need to have tangible documents ink-signed and notarized and the administration of oaths taken by remotely located individuals. Adoption of this Act will expand on Governor Carney’s authorization for remote notarization to be performed by licensed Delaware attorneys, codified in § 3156 of Title 20, by allowing all notarial officers authority to perform remote notarization.

In addition to retaining provisions that provide integrity in the process of performing notarial acts, the Revised Uniform Law does the following:

- (1) Provides the authority to notarize electronic documents on par with notarization of tangible documents, including authority for the Secretary of State to regulate notarization of electronic documents.
- (2) Requires a notary public to maintain a journal of all notarial acts the notary public performs.
- (3) Adopts new licensing procedures for notaries public, including minimum requirements for commissioning and grounds to deny, suspend, or revoke commissions.
- (4) Prohibits a notary public from acting in a deceptive or fraudulent manner.

Current Delaware law on notarial acts is an adoption of the Uniform Law on Notarial Acts, approved by the Uniform Law Commission in 1982. This Act’s adoption of the Revised Uniform Law would bring Delaware law on notarial acts into conformity with at least 20 other states, including all of the states bordering Delaware (Pennsylvania, Maryland, and New Jersey), which currently allow remote notarization and notarization of electronic records and include the updated provisions that enhance the integrity of the process of performing notarial acts.

This Act’s adoption of the Revised Uniform Law is delayed until January 1, 2023, to provide the Secretary of State and notaries public time to implement the Revised Uniform Law. In the interim, this Act continues the authority for Delaware attorneys to conduct remote notarization, codified in § 3156 of Title 20, until the Revised Uniform Law takes

effect. Then, Delaware attorneys will be authorized to conduct remote notarization under the Revised Uniform Law, like attorneys in other states that have adopted the Revised Uniform Law.

Author: Senator Lopez